
 

 

 
 

MIDDLETON TOWN COUNCIL 
TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MONDAY, JULY 18, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

   
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 
16.07.01 CALL TO ORDER 
 
16.07.02 APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
16.07.03 PRESENTATIONS 
  .01 Audited Financial Statements – Harold Duffett 
 
16.07.04 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
  .01 Council Meeting – May 16, 2016 
  .02 Special Council Meeting – June 6, 2016 
  .03 Special Council Meeting – July 4, 2016 
  .04 Special Council Meeting – July 13, 2016 
      
16.07.05 NEW BUSINESS 
 .01 Electronic Voting Bylaw – 2nd Reading & Passing  
  .02 Repeal of Swimming Pool Bylaw - 2nd Reading & Passing 
 .03 Committee of the Whole Recommendations 

a. Appointment: Western Regional Housing Authority  
b. Appointment: Middleton Fire Department 
c. Request for MPS/LUB Amendment – Neil C. Mitchell Sales  
d. Valley Waste Resource Management: Approval of Municipal Guarantees 

for TBR #26/17-1 
e. RFD 018-2016: Amendment to Policy G 2.1 Fees: Building and Planning 

.04 Approval of Capital Investment Plan Document  

.05 Temporary Borrowing Resolution – Town General Operations  

.06 RFD 017-2016: Harassment Policy Amendment 

.07 Development of Regional Recreation Services and Facilities 
                

16.07.06 REPORTS  
.01 Management – June & July 2016  
.02 Planning Services – May & June 2016 
.03 RCMP Report – April 1 to June 30, 2016 
.04 Planning Services Public Advisory Panel 

  .05 Police Advisory Board 
  .06 Mayor – June & July 2016 

    
16.07.07 CORRESPONDENCE  
 
16.07.08 ANYTHING BY MEMBERS 
 
16.07.09 ADJOURNMENT 

























































































 

 

 
REQUEST FOR DECISION 
Electronic Voting Bylaw 
#012-2016 
 

 
Date: 28 April 2016 
 

Subject: Electronic Voting Bylaw Chapter 57 

Proposal Attached: Yes 
 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend first reading to amend 

Chapter 57 Electronic Voting Bylaw to Council at the regularly 
scheduled Council meeting in May 2016. 
 

Background: Further to the decision by Town Council to provide for electronic 
voting at the 2016 municipal election, a bylaw outlining the 
provisions for this method of voting needs to be in force prior to 
the election. Attached is a proposed amended bylaw, developed 
by Intelivote, that is being implemented in various other 
municipal units that have chosen to go forward with electronic 
voting (Internet and telephone voting).  
 
It is required to have a bylaw in force, and the details within the 
document provide clarity around the various issues of who, what, 
when and where as they relate to the upcoming municipal 
election. 
 
Council is also being asked to provide clarity on whether or not 
paper ballots will also be used, or if the only methods utilized 
with be electronic (Internet and telephone). 
 

Benefits: 
 

 

Disadvantages: 
 

 

Options: 
 

 

               Required 
Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 
 

 

Sustainability 
Implications: 

 



 

(Environmental, 
Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 
 

Staff Comments/ 
Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 
Comments: 

 

 
 

 
 
 
CAO Initials:  RLT                             Target Decision Date: 16 May 2016                           
 
 
 



   

Page 1 of 7 
 

CHAPTER 57 
ELECTRONIC VOTING BYLAW 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
 

VOTING BYLAW FOR USE OF ALTERNATIVE VOTING  
(INTERNET AND TELEPHONE) 

 
 

 
BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the Town of Middleton, under the authority of Section 146A 
of the Municipal Elections Act, 1989 R.S.N.S. c. 300, as amended, as follows: 
 
 
SHORT TITLE 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known as Chapter 57 and may be cited as the “Electronic Voting Bylaw”.  
 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
2. In this bylaw:  

a. “Act” means the Municipal Elections Act, 1989 R.S.N.S. c. 300, as amended:  
 

b. “advance poll” means:  
i. the Tuesday immediately preceding ordinary polling day; and  

ii. one other day fixed by the Council by resolution that is either Thursday, the ninth 
day before ordinary polling day or Saturday, the seventh day before ordinary polling 
day;  

 
c. “alternative polling days” means any hours and dates fixed by a resolution of 

Council for alternative voting; 
 
d. “alternative voting” means voting by telephone or via the internet through the 

unsupervised use of a personal computing device and includes a combination of telephone 
and internet voting;  

 
e. “ballot box” means a computer database in the system where cast internet ballots and 

telephone ballots are put;  
 

f. “candidate” means a person who has been nominated as a candidate pursuant to the Act;  
 

g. “Council” means the Council of the Town of Middleton;  
 

h. “Education Act” means the Education Act 1995-1996 S.N.S. c. 1, as amended;  
 

i. “election” means an election held pursuant to the Act, including a school board election;  
 

j. “Election Officer” means an “Election Official” under the Act;  
 
 
 



   

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
k. “elector” means a person:  

i. qualified to vote pursuant to the Act and the Education Act; and  
ii. entitled to vote on advance polling days for an election pursuant to Section 10 of 

this bylaw, or entitled to vote on the ordinary polling day;  
 

l. “final list of electors” means the final list of electors completed pursuant to Section 40 of 
the Act;  

 
m. “friend voter” means a friend who votes for an elector pursuant to Section 12 of this by-

law;  
 
n. “Internet ballot” means an image of a ballot on an Internet enabled digital device screen 

including all the choices available to an elector and the spaces in which an elector marks 
a vote:  

 
o. “Municipality” means the Town of Middleton; 
 
p. “normal business hours” means the time between 8:30 am and 4:30 pm, Monday through 

to and including Friday;  
 

q. “ordinary polling day” means the third Saturday in October in a regular election year and 
in the case of any other election, means the Saturday fixed for the election;  

 
r. “PIN” means the Personal Identification Number issued to an elector for alternative 

voting on alternative polling days or on the ordinary polling day;  
 
s. “proxy voter” means an elector who votes by a proxy pursuant to the Act;  
 
t. “regular election year” means 2016 and every fourth year thereafter;  
 
u. “spoiled ballot” means an Internet ballot or telephone ballot that has not been marked for 

any candidate;  
 
v. “Returning Officer” means a Returning Officer appointed pursuant to the Act;  
 
w. “seal” means to secure the ballot box and prevent Internet and telephone ballots from 

being cast;  
 

x. “system” means the technology, including software, that:  
i. records and counts votes; and  

ii. processes and stores the results of alternative voting during alternative polling days 
and on the ordinary polling day;  

 
y. System Elections Officer” means:  

i. a person who maintains, monitors, or audits the system, and  
ii. a person who has access to the system beyond the access necessary to vote by 

alternative voting;  
 
 

 



   

Page 3 of 7 
 

z. “telephone ballot” means:  
i. an audio set of instructions which describes the voting choices available to an elector; 

and  
ii. the marking of a selection by an elector by depressing the number on a touch tone 

keypad.  
 
 
ALTERNATIVE VOTING PERMITTED 
 
3. Subject to this bylaw, alternative voting shall be permitted on alternative polling days and on 

the ordinary polling day.  
 
4. The Municipality may elect to use alternative voting on the ordinary polling day and/or make 

available the equipment to use alternative voting at any poll.  
 
5. Not fewer than sixty (60) days before the ordinary polling day, the Returning Officer is directed 

to establish procedures and forms for the conduct of voting in accordance with the bylaw and 
to provide a copy of the procedures and forms to each candidate for election.  

 
 
NOTIFICATION OF ELECTORS 
 
6.0  The Returning Officer shall cause notice of advance poll days to be published in a newspaper 

circulating in the municipality.  
 
6.1  The notice of advance poll days shall:  

a. identify the advance poll days for paper voting and for alternative voting; and  
b. inform the elector that telephone voting and internet voting is permitted during alternative 

polling days.  
 
6.2  The notice may include any other information the Returning Officer deems necessary.  
 
7.0 The Returning Officer shall cause notice of the ordinary polling day to be published as 

required by the Act.  
 
7.1  The notice may include any information the Returning Officer deems necessary to comply 

with the Act or this bylaw.  
 
 
FORM OF TELEPHONE AND INTERNET BALLOTS 
 
8.0  A telephone ballot and Internet ballot shall:  

a. identify by the title “Election for Mayor”, “Election for Councillor” or “Election for 
School Board Member”, as the case may be; 

b. identify the name or names by which they are commonly known of the candidates with 
given names followed by surnames, arranged alphabetically in order of their surnames 
and, where necessary, their given names; and  

c. warn the elector to “vote for one candidate only” or “vote for not more than (the number 
of candidates to be elected) candidates”, as the case may be.  
 

 



   

Page 4 of 7 
 

8.1  No title, honour, decoration or degree shall be included with a candidate’s name on an Internet 
ballot or telephone ballot.  

 
 
OATH 
  
9.  Any oath that is authorized or required shall be made in the form required by the Act.  
 
 
ELECTORS 
 
10.  No person shall vote by alternative voting unless:  

a. the person’s name appears on the final list of electors on the date chosen by Council for 
the final list of electors, to be completed pursuant to Section 40 of the Act; or 

b. The person’s name does not appear on the final list of electors and:  
i. the person appears before the Returning Officer during normal business hours 

during advance polling days; and  
ii. the person swears an oath in the prescribed form to the Act.  

  
 
PROXY VOTING 
 
11. A proxy voter shall not vote for an elector by alternative voting.  
 
 
FRIEND VOTING 
 
12.0  A friend voter shall only vote for an elector by alternative voting if:  

a. an elector is unable to vote because:  
i. the elector is blind;  

ii. the elector cannot read; or  
iii. the elector has a physical disability that prevents him or her from voting by 

alternative voting.  
b. the elector and the friend appear, in person, before the Returning Officer and take the 

prescribed oaths.  
 
12.1  A candidate shall not act as a friend voter unless the elector is a child, grandchild, brother, 

sister, parent, grandparent, or spouse of the candidate.  
 
12.2  The elector shall take an oath in the prescribed form to the Act providing that he or she is 

incapable of voting without assistance.  
 
12.3  The friend of the elector shall take an oath in the prescribed form to the Act that:  

a. the friend has not previously acted as a friend for any other elector in the election other 
than an elector who is a child, grandchild, brother, sister, parent, grandparent, or spouse 
of the friend of the elector;  

b. the friend will mark the ballot as requested by the elector; and  
c. the friend will keep secret the choice of the elector. 
 
 
 



   

Page 5 of 7 
 

 12.4  The Returning Officer shall enter in the poll book:  
a. the reason why the elector is unable to vote;  
b. the name of the friend; and  
c. the fact that the oaths were taken.  

 
 
VOTING 
 
13.  The system shall put Internet ballots and telephone ballots cast by an elector in the ballot box.  
 
 
SEAL 
 
14.0  At the close of the alternative polling days, the system shall seal the ballot box until after 

the close of the poll on ordinary polling day.  
 
14.1  The system shall seal the ballot box even where fewer than ten persons from any polling 

district voted for a candidate during advance polling days.  
 
 
LIST OF PERSONS WHO VOTED 
 
15. At the close of ordinary polling days, the system shall:  

a. generate a list of all electors who voted either manually or by alternative voting; and  
b. a list of voters who did not vote, if required by the Returning Officer. 

 
 
COUNTING  
 
16.  At the close of ordinary polling day, the system shall generate a count of the telephone ballots 

and Internet ballots in the ballot box that were cast for each candidate during alternative 
polling days and on the ordinary polling day.  

 
 
RECOUNT BY SYSTEM 
 
17.  In the event of a recount, the system shall regenerate the election count and a printed copy of 

the regenerated count shall be given to the Returning Officer. 
 
18.  If the initial count and the regenerated count match, the regenerated count shall be the final 

count of the votes cast by alternative voting.  
 
19.  If the regenerated count and the initial count do not match, the Returning Officer shall:  

a. direct one final count be regenerated by the system of the votes cast by alternative 
voting, and  

b. attend while the final count is being regenerated.  
 
20.  The regenerated final count pursuant to subsection (1) shall be the final count of the votes cast 

by alternative voting.  
 
 



   

Page 6 of 7 
 

RECOUNT BY COURT 
 
21.0  For a recount, the judge shall only consider the final count by the system, as determined 

by Section 21 or 22, of the total number of votes that were cast by alternative voting for 
each candidate.  

 
21.1  The final count by the system, as determined by Section 21 or 22, of the total number of 

votes that were cast by alternative voting for each candidate, shall be added to the judge’s 
count of the number of votes for each candidate cast by non-alternative voting.  

 
 
SECRECY  
 
22.  An Election Officer and System Election Officer shall maintain and aid in maintaining the 

secrecy of the voting.  
 
23.  Every person in attendance at a polling station, or at the counting of the votes, shall maintain 

and aid in maintaining the secrecy of the voting.  
 
 
SEVERABILITY  
 
24.  If a court of competent jurisdiction should declare any section or part of a section of this bylaw 

to be invalid, such section or part of a section shall not be construed as having persuaded or 
influenced Council to pass the remainder of the bylaw and it is hereby declared that the 
remainder of the bylaw shall be valid and shall remain in force.  

 
PROHIBITIONS  
 
25.  No person shall: 

a. use another person’s PIN to vote or access the system unless the person is a friend voter;  
b. take, seize, or deprive an elector of his or her PIN; or  
c. sell, gift, transfer, assign or purchase a PIN.  

 
26.  No person shall:  

a. interfere or attempt to interfere with an elector who is casting an Internet ballot or 
telephone ballot;  

b. interfere or attempt to interfere with alternative voting; or  
c. attempt to ascertain the name of the candidate for whom an elector is about to vote or has 

voted.  
 
27.  No person shall, at any time, communicate or attempt to communicate any information 

relating to the candidate for whom an elector has voted.  
 
 
OFFENCES AND PENALTIES 
 
28.0.  A person who:  

a. violates any provision of this bylaw; or  
b. permits anything to be done in violation of any provision of this bylaw; is guilty of an 

offence.  



   

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
28.1  A person who contravenes Subsection (1) of this section is guilty of an offence and is liable, 

on summary conviction, to a penalty of not less than five thousand ($5,000) dollars and not 
more than ten thousand ($10,000) dollars and in default of payment, to imprisonment for a 
term of two years less a day, or both.  

 
28.2  In determining a penalty under Subsection (2), a judge shall take into account:  

a. the number of votes attempted to be interfered with;  
b. the number of votes interfered with; and  
c. any potential interference with the outcome of an election.  

 
28.3  Pursuant to Section 146A of the Act:  

a. the limitation period for the prosecution of an offence under this bylaw is two years 
from the later of the date of the commission of the offence and the date on which it was 
discovered that an offence had been committed; and 

b. The Remission of Penalties Act, 1989 SNS c.397, as amended, does not apply to a 
pecuniary penalty imposed by this bylaw.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Date of First Reading: May 16, 2016     
2. Publication of Notice of Second Reading   
3. Date of 2nd Reading & Passing    
4. Date of Publication of Notice of Passing   
 
 
*Effective date of the Bylaw unless otherwise specified in the text 
of the Bylaw. 

I, Rachel L. Turner, Town Clerk of the Town of 
Middleton, do hereby certify that the bylaw, of which 
the foregoing is a true copy, was duly passed at a duly 
called meeting of the Town Council of the Town of 
Middleton held   on   the   day of          , 2016. 
 
GIVEN under the hand of the Town Clerk and the 
corporate seal of the Town of Middleton this  day of                  
, 2016. 
 
_____________________________ 
Rachel L. Turner 
Town Clerk 
 

 



 

 

 
REQUEST FOR DECISION 
Chapter 45 Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw  
#011-2016 
 

 
Date: May 2, 2016 
 

Subject: Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw 

Proposal Attached: Yes 
 

Submitted by: Sharon McAuley, Planning Services 
Coordinator 

 
Proposal: That Committee of the Whole consider recommending to Council 

the repeal of Chapter 45 – Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw at the 
regular Council meeting scheduled for May 16, 2016. 
 

Background: In January of 2016 the Town entered into an agreement with the 
County of Annapolis to provide Building and Fire Inspection 
Services for the Town of Middleton. As a result, a review is being 
done of the Town’s Building and Fire Bylaws/Policies to ensure 
they are complimentary with that of the County.  
 
To streamline processes for both residents and staff who are 
providing these services, it is proposed to repeal the Swimming 
Pool Fencing Bylaw which has already been repealed in the 
County. 
 
The latest version of the Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw came into 
effect on January 12, 2005 with the purpose of ensuring that all 
swimming pools in the Town of Middleton are fenced to prohibit 
children from gaining unsupervised access. 
 
Solicitor advice: 
 
 Although the Town is not required to have a Swimming Pool 

Fencing Bylaw, under the MGA the Town has the authority to 
order that any property or structure which is "dangerous" be 
made safe.  There is no reason why the Town could not rely 
upon that authority and order the owner of a pool to erect a 
fence. 

 
 It is arguable that the Town is better protected from a claim if 

the bylaw is repealed.  While the bylaw continues to be in force 
and effect, there is, arguably, a duty upon the Town to conduct 
inspections to ensure that pool owners are in compliance.  If an 
accident occurred and someone were to find that a pool did not 



 

meet the standards of the bylaw, a Plaintiff might argue that 
the Town should bear some responsibility (that it failed to 
properly investigate).  By repealing the bylaw, the Town is 
signaling to property owners that they alone will be responsible 
for ensuring the safety of people who may enter upon their 
property. 

 
Benefits: 

 
 Town will no longer be responsible for policing what could 

be considered as parent/guardian/homeowner’s 
responsibilities. 

 Processes will match the surrounding municipality. 
 Reduce risk to the Town. 

 
Disadvantages: 

 
 Perception that the Town does not care for the safety of 

children. 
 

Options: 
 
 Status quo. 
 Repeal the Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw. 

 
               Required 

Resources: 
 

 Bylaw enforcement will be required if the swimming pool 
fencing bylaw is not repealed. 

Source of Funding: 
 

 

Sustainability 
Implications: 

(Environmental, 
Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 
 

 

Staff Comments/ 
Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 
Comments: 

 

 

 
 
 
CAO Initials: _RLT__________                                Target Decision Date: May 16, 2016                           
 
 
 

















 

 

 
REQUEST FOR DECISION 
Policy G.2.1 Fees-Building and Planning 
#018-2016 
 

 
Date: July 4, 2016 
 

Subject: Amendment to Building and Planning Fees Policy 

Proposal Attached: Yes 
 

Submitted by: Sharon McAuley, Planning Services 
Coordinator 

 
Proposal: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council approval of 

the amendments to the Fees – Building and Planning Policy, 
#G.2.1, as presented. 
 

Background: In May 2016 Council held 1st reading to repeal the Swimming 
Pool Bylaw. 2nd reading and passing is scheduled to take place at 
the July 18, 2016 Council meeting. The amendment to Policy 
G.2.1: Fees – Building and Planning is a housekeeping 
amendment to remove the fees associated with the Swimming 
Pool Bylaw. 
 

Benefits: 
 

The housekeeping change will bring the Building and Planning 
Fees Policy in line with the repeal of the Swimming Pool Bylaw. 
 

Disadvantages: 
 

None. 

Options: 
 

 

               Required 
Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 
 

 

Sustainability 
Implications: 

(Environmental, 
Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 
 

 

Staff Comments/ 
Recommendations: 

 

CAO’s Review/ 
Comments: 

 

 

 
 
CAO Initials:  __RLT________                                Target Decision Date: 18 July 2016      



 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
CODE G - PLANNING 

Subject: Fees – Building and Planning Number: 2.1 
Coverage: Staff & Public Approved by: Council 
Effective Date : November 1, 2004 Revision Date: Feb. 2, 2004; Feb. 5, 2007; 

 May 5, 2008; March 2, 2015,; Sept. 8, 2015; July 
18,2016 

 
Rationale 

 
The following policy establishes uniform fees for permits and services provided by the Town of 
Middleton, to enable some cost recovery for services provided. 

  
Policy Statement 

 
1. Applications 

All Applications shall be accompanied by the necessary permit fees payable to the 
Town of Middleton.   

 
2.  Development Permits & Planning Document Amendments 

The following schedule of fees shall be charged for development services provided by 
the Town of Middleton: 

 
Development Permit fee $50 
Municipal Planning Strategy and/or Land Use 
Bylaw amendment application 

$500 + $500 (advertising fee) 

Development Agreement applications $500 + $500 (advertising fee) + 
registry fees 

Minor Variances $400 + $500 (advertising fee) + 
registry fees 

Subdivision Tentative: $200 + registry fees 
Final:        $300 + registry fees  

Zoning Confirmation Letters $100 
 

3.  Building Permits 
3.1  Any construction requiring a building permit shall pay the appropriate fee laid 

out   in the following table. 
 

Permit Type Building Permit Fee 
New construction of, and additions 
to: residential buildings, community 
centres, cottages and churches. 
 

$25 +  $0.10/ sq. ft. (based on all useable floor 
areas of new construction or addition) 
 

New construction of, and additions 
to: commercial, industrial and other 
buildings not otherwise specified. 

$25 +  $0.15/ sq. ft. (based on all useable floor 
areas of new construction or addition) 
 



 

Page 2 of 3 

Permit Type Building Permit Fee 
 
New construction of, and additions 
to: sheds, decks, shell storage 
buildings, garages, and agricultural 
storage buildings. 

$25 +  $0.06/ sq. ft. (based on all useable floor 
areas of new construction or addition) 
 
 

Repairs, renovations or alterations to 
all existing buildings. 
 

$25 + $1 per $1000 of estimated value of 
construction work. 

Location or re-location of an existing 
building. 
 

$50 

Construction or location of 
SWIMMING POOL including 
required fencing. 
 

$25 

RENEWAL of an approved permit. 
 

$25 

Change of occupancy classification $50 + $1 per $1,000 of estimated value of 
construction work. 
 

DEMOLITION of building or 
structure. 

$25 

 
 

3.2  Square footage for the purpose of building permits shall be calculated as 
follows: 

a. buildings intended for human occupancy shall include all useable floor 
space (finished); 

b. buildings not intended for human occupancy shall be based on the area of 
the main floor. 

 
3.4  Permit fees shall be refunded in situations and proportions as follows: 

a. applications never completed, retained fee $25, balance refunded, 
b. permit denied, retained fee $25, balance refunded 
c. permit revoked or abandoned before work commenced, 50% of fee 

refunded, 
d. permit revoked or abandoned after work commenced, no refund. 

 
 

References 

 
Town of Middleton  - Building Code Bylaw, Chapter 19, Part 2 - Permit Fees 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 3 of 3 

Previous Policies 

 
The previous policy 1/73 “Town of Middleton - Fees Policy” Effective February 2, 2004 is 
hereby amended. 

 
The previous policy 7/3 “User Fee Policy” Effective November 1, 2004 is hereby amended. 

 
 

Certification 

 
  
 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that this policy was 

duly passed by a majority vote of the whole 

Council at a duly called Council meeting held 

on the 18th day of July, 2016. 

 

GIVEN under the hand of the CAO and 

under the seal of the Town of Middleton this 

18th day of July, 2016. 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 
                  Rachel L. Turner 
              Chief Administrative Officer  







 

 

 
REQUEST FOR DECISION 
Harassment Policy Amendment 
#017-2016 
 

 
Date: 14 June 2016 
 

Subject: Policy 3.4: Harassment 

Proposal Attached: Yes 
 

Submitted by: Rachel Turner, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
Proposal: That Council approve Policy 3.4 Harassment as amended. 

 
Background: On June 13, Council was sent an e-mail providing the required 

seven day notice for a change to Policy 3.4 per the MGA.  
 
Currently, the policy only allows for internal workplace 
investigations into harassment complaints and requires a male and 
female on the appointed committee. There may be specific 
circumstances where an external committee or appointee would be 
a more appropriate solution to investigate a complaint so as not to 
have employees investigating other employees. Additionally, 
finding appropriate employees of both genders can also pose 
significant challenges with a small staff. While maintaining this as 
one process, it is proposed that the CAO be given the flexibility to 
determine if an external investigation is the most appropriate 
solution so as to deal with serious allegations or complaints in the 
most fair, transparent, and timely manner possible. 
 
Additionally, under section 4 of the policy, section 4.5 re-iterates 
and specifies gender victims of sexual harassment, where it is 
already fully defined in section 4.4. The deletion of section 4.5 is 
also being proposed as an amendment. 
 
 

Benefits: 
 

The proposed changes allow for flexibility to find the most 
appropriate solution to potential complaints within the 
organization, providing employees the confidence that their 
complaints will be confidential and treated with professionalism. 
 
The removal of section 4.5 also recognizes that harassment can 
happen with any gender or person, without stereotyping any kind 
of harassment to a gender type. 
 

Disadvantages:  



 

 
Options: 

 
 

               Required 
Resources: 

 

 

Source of Funding: 
 

 

Sustainability 
Implications: 

(Environmental, 
Social, Economic 

and Cultural) 
 

 

Staff Comments/ 
Recommendations: 

 

 

CAO’s Review/ 
Comments: 

 

 
 

 
 
 
CAO Initials:   RLT                              Target Decision Date: 20 June 2016                           
 
 
 



Code D - 3.4  1 of 9
  

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
CODE D - PERSONNEL 

Subject: Harassment Number: 3.4 

Coverage: Staff & Council 
Approved by: Council & 
CAO 

Effective Date : December 2, 1991 Revision Date: October 2, 2006 
                           February 5, 2007 

 
Rationale 

 
The Town of Middleton is committed to providing a work environment in which all employees 

are treated with respect and dignity.  There will be zero tolerance for harassment both in 
and outside the workplace. This policy is one step toward ensuring that the workplace is a 
comfortable place for all, clearly stating the Town’s position and providing a clear path 
for remediation in the event of harassment. 
 

Policy Statement 

 
1.0) General 
 

1.1) This Policy applies to members of Council and all employees. 
 
1.2) Any form of harassment of an employee constitutes a serious violation.  Those who 

are found to have committed harassment will face disciplinary action up to and 
including termination.   

 
2.0) Objectives 
 

2.1) The objectives of the Harassment Policy and Procedure are to: 
a) provide the definition of harassment; 
b) educate the employees on the issue of harassment; 
c) define the responsibilities of both management and employees in relation to 

harassment; 
d) identify the options available in dealing with harassment; 
e) provide the process for an objective and fair investigation of complaints of 

harassment; 
f) achieve the strictest confidentiality possible; and 
g) ensure advice and support are given to individuals who are subjected to 

harassment. 
 

3.0) Applicable Legislation 
 

3.1) Every Person has the right to live and work without being harassed. The Nova 

Scotia Human Rights Act and the Canada Labour Code protect employees and 
customers from harassment that is related to their race, national or ethnic origin, 
colour, religion, age, sex, marital status, family status, disability, pardoned 



Code D - 3.4  2 of 9
  

conviction, or sexual orientation. The Criminal Code protects against physical and 
sexual assault.  

4.0) Definition 
 
4.1) Harassment is any behaviour that demeans, humiliates, or embarrasses a person, 

and that a reasonable person should have known would be unwelcome. It includes 
actions, comments, or displays. It may be a single incident or continue over time. 
Some examples of harassment include:  
a) unwelcome remarks, slurs, jokes, taunts, or suggestions about a person's body, 

clothing, race, national or ethnic origin, colour, religion, age, sex, marital status, 
family status, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, pardoned 
conviction, or other personal characteristics;  

b) unwelcome sexual remarks, invitations, or requests (including persistent, 
unwanted contact after the end of a sexual relationship);  

c) displays of sexually explicit, sexist, racist, or other offensive or derogatory 
material;  

d) written or verbal abuse or threats;  
e) practical jokes that embarrass or insult someone;  
f) leering (suggestive staring) or other offensive gestures;  
g) unwelcome physical contact, such as patting, touching, pinching, hitting;  
h) patronizing or condescending behaviour;  
i) humiliating an employee in front of co-workers;  
j) abuse of authority that undermines someone's performance or threatens her or 

his career;  
k) vandalism of personal property; and/or  
l) physical or sexual assault. 

 
4.2) Sexual harassment is offensive, degrading, inappropriate, threatening and illegal.  

Sexual harassment is defined in the Nova Scotia Human Rights Act As: 
a) a course of vexatious sexual conduct or comment that is known or ought 

reasonably to be known as unwelcome; 
b) a sexual solicitation or advance made to an individual by another individual 

where the other individual is in a position to confer a benefit on or deny a 
benefit to the individual to whom the solicitation or advance is made where the 
individual who makes the solicitation or advance knows or ought reasonably to 
know that it is unwelcome; or, 

c) a reprisal or threat of reprisal against an individual for rejecting a sexual 
solicitation or advance. 

 
4.3) Disrespectful behaviour, known as "personal" harassment, is also covered in this 

policy. While it also involves unwelcome behaviour that demeans or embarrasses 
an employee, the behaviour is not based on one of the protected grounds named 
above. 

 



Code D - 3.4  3 of 9
  

4.4) Harassment can take place between co-workers, between a manager and employee, 
between people of the opposite sex or of the same sex, between an employee and a 
client, or between an employee and a job applicant.  

 
4.5) Women are the most common victims of sexual harassment by men, however, 

sexual harassment may also occur between women, between men or by women 
harassing men. 

 
4.6)4.5) Harassment is prohibited whether it occurs in the workplace or anywhere 

else as a result of employment responsibilities or employment relationships; 
harassment will not be tolerated: 
a) in the workplace; 
b) at employment related social functions; 
c) in the course of work assignments outside the workplace; 
d) at job-related conferences or training sessions; and 
e) during job-related travel. 

 
4.7)4.6) Consensual banter or romantic relationships are not harassment where the 

people involved agree with what's happening. Appropriate performance reviews, 
counselling, or discipline by a supervisor or manager are not harassment.  

 
5.0) Responsibilities 

 
5.1) Management and Supervisors 

a) are responsible for providing a work environment that is free of sexual 
harassment. 

b) will take a proactive approach by discouraging employment related sexual 
harassment.  This is a continuing responsibility whether or not complaints have 
been made.  

c) will ensure that all employees understand what constitutes sexual harassment 
and the existence of the procedures available under this Policy. 

d) have an obligation to deal with violations of this policy or complaints of sexual 
harassment in a prompt and serious manner and further to immediately report 
instance of sexual harassment to the Chief Administrative officer, whether or 
not a complaint has been officially filed. 

e) will impose strict disciplinary action for violations of the policy. 
 
5.2) Employees 

a) have a right, under the law, to a work environment that is free from harassment.  
Every employee therefore, has a responsibility to become knowledgeable about 
employment related harassment and take the necessary steps to expose 
violations that leave themselves and their co-workers at risk. 

b) have a duty to act assertively by making their unequivocal disapproval of the  
harassment known to the offender immediately.  If the action is repeated, the 
employee should refer to the options available under the Complaint Procedure 
section of this policy 



Code D - 3.4  4 of 9
  

 
 
 
 
6.0) Informal Complaints  
 

6.1) Employees who experience or suspect harassment are strongly urged to address the 
problem with a formal or informal complaint. Employees wishing to make an 
informal complaint may: 
a) Communicate concerns directly to the alleged harasser.  The employee who is 

being harassed (the complainant) should inform the harasser clearly and directly 
that their behaviour is unwelcome by describing the behaviour which was 
offensive, when it occurred, how it makes the complainant feel and that it must 
stop.  Informing the harasser of the Municipality’s Harassment Policy will 
ensure it is clearly understood that the unwelcome behaviour will not be 
tolerated.  If possible, ensure a third person is present and make note of the 
conversation afterward. The complainant may relate the same information to the 
harasser in a written letter, a copy of which should be kept by the complainant. 

 
b) Communicate concerns to Supervisors. All managers and supervisors have an 

obligation to take reasonable measures to provide a work environment that is 
free of harassment and to take corrective action should harassment occur.  If the 
complainant feels comfortable doing so, it may be helpful to discuss concerns 
relating to  harassment with their immediate supervisor or with another person 
in a position of authority and to request their assistance in resolving the 
situation.  Again, the complainant may find it helpful to be accompanied by 
another person and to keep a record of the discussion, and if the concerns are 
communicated in writing, to keep a copy of the correspondence. 

 
c) Communicate concerns to the Chief Administrative Officer. Part of the role of 

the Chief Administrative Officer is to provide assistance and support to 
employees experiencing work related problems.  If the complainant feels 
comfortable doing so, they are encouraged to bring their concerns to the CAO.  
The complainant may wish to be accompanied by another person and should 
keep a record of the discussion.  If the concerns are communicated in writing, 
the employee should keep a copy of the correspondence. 

 
7.0) Mediation 

7.1) It may be appropriate to attempt to resolve the complaint through mediation before 
going to a formal investigation.  
a) If a qualified person from outside the organization is available to act as a 

mediator, and the complainant and alleged harasser agree, that person will 
attempt to help the parties settle the complaint. If no one is available, the 
designated person may help settle the complaint, if the parties agree.  



Code D - 3.4  5 of 9
  

b) The mediator should not be involved in investigating the complaint, and should 
not be asked to represent the Town at any stage of any proceedings related to 
the complaint.  

c) Either party has the right to refuse mediation. If mediation is suggested but one 
party is uncomfortable, that party may reject the mediation process and it will 
not reflect negatively during the complaint process.  

d) If mediation does become part of the process, each person has the right to be 
accompanied and assisted during mediation sessions by someone they choose.  

 
8.0) Formal Complaints  

 
8.1) Employees who experience or suspect harassment are strongly urged to address the 

problem with a formal or informal complaint. The employee is not required to 
submit an informal complaint prior to making a formal complaint, and making an 
informal complaint does not preclude the employee form also making a formal 
complaint.   
 

8.2) Employees wishing to make a formal complaint shall submit a written complaint 
providing details of the incident(s) together with any supporting evidence to the 
Chief Administrative Officer. 

 
8.3) Upon receipt of a complaint, the Chief Administrative Officer shall appoint an 

investigating Committee immediately.  The Committee shall be comprised of two 
individuals (one female, one male) selected by the Chief Administrative Officer 
who are not directly involved in the complaint. Where an internal investigative 
committee is not practical, appropriate, or available, the Chief Administrative 
Officer has the authority to appoint an external individual or firm to complete the 
investigation. 

 
9.0) Investigation 
 

9.1) All formal complaints shall be thoroughly investigated without delay. 
 

9.2) The Committee will take a neutral, non-judgmental position throughout the 
investigation, to ensure the optimum collection of relevant data on which a fair 
conclusion will be reached.   

 
9.3) The Committee shall keep detailed and accurate notes of what was said, making 

sure to get facts straight, checking and rechecking details as appropriate. 
 

9.4) The Committee shall take the following steps in  all investigations: 
a) carefully review the written complaint. 
b) interview separately: 

i. the complainant 
ii. the alleged offender 
iii. all witnesses 



Code D - 3.4  6 of 9
  

iv. any other relevant persons. 
 
9.5) The alleged harasser shall be advised of the essential details of the complaint and be 

given an opportunity to respond. Any witnesses will be interviewed for the purpose 
of corroborating the complainant’s or the alleged harasser’s version of the 
incident(s). 

 
9.6) During the interviews, the Committee will attempt to gather all relevant information 

by carefully hearing all witnesses, keeping an open mind and paying particular 
attention to: 
a) Who was involved?  
b) Were there any witnesses 
c) When did the incident(s) occur? 
d) Where did the incident(s) take place? 
e) In what context, in or outside the workplace? 
f) What exactly was said, by whom? 
g) What was the reaction of the complainant/ the harasser? 
h) What are the details? 

 
9.7) The complainant and alleged harasser should be kept informed on the progress of 

the investigation. 
 
9.8) The investigator must recommend based on the investigation whether the complaint 

is valid, or if there is not enough evidence to support an allegation of harassment. 
 
9.9) The Committee shall prepare a written report providing the details of its 

investigation, its findings and recommendations for further action. The report shall 
be submitted to the Chief Administrative Officer. 

 
10.0) Decision 

 
10.1) The Chief Administrative Officer shall make a decision based on the report 

submitted by the investigation Committee regarding whether or not there has been 
harassment. 
 

10.2) If Harassment occurred, remedies for a person who has been harassed may include 
any of the following, depending on the nature and severity of the harassment:  
a) an oral or written apology from the harasser and the Town of Middleton;  
b) compensation for any lost wages or employment benefits, such as sick leave;  
c) a job or promotion that was denied in bad faith;  
d) a commitment that s/he will not be negatively affected (e.g. denied promotion) 

in the future as a result of the investigation.  
 
10.3) Corrective action for harassers will include any of the following, depending on the 

nature and severity of the harassment:  
a) a verbal or written reprimand;  



Code D - 3.4  7 of 9
  

b) anti-harassment or sensitivity training;  
c) a suspension, with or without pay;  
d) a transfer or demotion if it is not reasonable for the people involved to continue 

working together; or 
e) a dismissal. 

 
10.4) The complainant, the alleged harasser, and the Investigation Committee shall be 

notified immediately of the decision and disciplinary action taken. The CAO will 
provide a written copy of the decision to the affected parties within a week. 

 
11.0) Complaints made in bad faith 

 
11.1) In the rare event that the complaint was made in bad faith, that is deliberately and 

maliciously filed knowing it had absolutely no basis, the complainant will be 
subject to the same penalties as a harasser up to and including termination. 

 
11.2) The person unjustly accused of harassment will have her or his reputation restored, 

and will be given the benefit of any necessary remedies that would be given in a 
case of harassment.  

 
12.0) Retaliation 

 
12.1) Anyone who retaliates in any way against a person who has made a harassment 

complaint, or provided evidence for a harassment complaint will be subject to the 
same penalties as a harasser.  

 
13.0) Time limits 

 
13.1) Managers have a responsibility to make sure harassment ends as soon as they 

become aware of it. Complaints will be resolved as quickly as possible, ideally 
within one month of being made.  

 
13.2) Complainants should be aware that there is a one-year time limit for filing a 

complaint with the Nova Scotia Human Rights Commission.  
 

14.0) Record Keeping 
 
14.1) Employees who experience  harassment should keep accurate records of incidents 

comprising the alleged harassment including dates, times, reference to actions taken 
by the complainant, responses of the alleged harasser, responses of managers, 
witnesses, and any other relevant information.  Such documentation can be a vital 
component of any further action which may be required.  However, it is not a 
requirement in order to proceed with a formal complaint. 
 

14.2) The investigation Committee shall keep detailed and accurate records of method 
and results of the investigation. 



Code D - 3.4  8 of 9
  

 
15.0) Confidentiality 

 
15.1) All complaints will be kept in the strictest confidence except as required for the full 

and fair investigation of the complaint or as otherwise required by law.   
15.2) During the investigation, all information concerning the matter shall be kept 

confidential and will not be placed in the personnel file for the complainant or 
alleged offender.  

15.3) Should disciplinary action be taken against an offender or a complainant, this will 
be documented in the respective personnel file in accordance with normal 
procedures. 

 
16.0) Harassment by Non-Employees 

 
16.1) Any employee who believes that they have been subject to employment-related 

harassment by a person who is not an employee of the Municipality should report 
the matter to their Department Head.   

16.2) Following investigation, if the complaint is substantiated, the Town will take 
whatever action is reasonably possible to ensure the behaviour is not repeated.  

 
17.0) External Options for Complaints 

 
17.1) The following external complaint options are also available to employees: 

a) Lodge a complaint to the Nova Scotia Human Rights Commission, or 
b) Lodge a complaint under the Criminal Code of Canada. 

 
References 

 
Government of Canada - Criminal Code 

Government of Canada - Canada Labour Code 

Province of Nova Scotia - Nova Scotia Human Rights Act 
 

Previous Policies 

 
The previous policy 9/11 “Town of Middleton - Sexual Harassment Policy” approved by 

Council on February 5, 2001 is hereby amended. 
 

Certification 

 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that this policy was 

duly passed by a majority vote of the whole 

Council at a duly called Council meeting held 

on the 5th day of February, 2007. 

GIVEN under the hand of the CAO and 

under the seal of the Town of Middleton this 

__________  day of ___________,  20   . 



 

 
 

 
 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 
June 20, 2016 

 
 
 

WATER MAINS, SEWER MAINS AND STORM DRAINS 
- There are no water main breaks to report. 
- Storm drain on Victoria Street has been fixed.   
- Manhole on Main Street has been fixed. 

 
ROAD REPAIR 

- There is no road repair to report.   
- Cold patching is being done as required. 
- Rebuilding on Acadia Street has finished. 
- Line painting has started. 
 

GENERAL MAINTENANCE 
- Lawn care is well on its way and sweeping of streets and sidewalks. 
- Cleaning of winter equipment and repair is in progress. 
- STP Building in construction stage for siding and roof. 

 
OTHER 

- Splash Pad is operational.  
 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY 

- OH & S Meetings are taking place once a month; minutes will be posted on SharePoint.  
- There are no accidents to report at this time.  

 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS’ PROJECTS 

- The engineering on the storm drain on Marshall Street has been started.  
- The engineering report from CBCL for the reservoir leak has been completed and 

recommendations are in the planning stages. 
- I am working on the engineering for the replacement of the sewer lines on Main Street.  

 
 
 
 
John Pearson 
Director of Public Works 
 

Office of the 

Director of Public Works 

John Pearson 

Phone: (902) 824-0771 

Fax: (902) 825-6460 

pwdirector@town.middleton.ns.ca 



 

 
 

 
 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 
July 18, 2016 

 
 
 

WATER MAINS, SEWER MAINS AND STORM DRAINS 
- There are no water main breaks to report. 
- Commercial Street sinkhole has been fixed.   
- Storm drain on Commercial Street has been fixed. 
- Chlorine Quill has been replaced at the well house. 

 
ROAD REPAIR 

- Paving of streets has begun.   
- Bricks on the sidewalk are being lifted and reseated. 
- Class A gravel used to level the sides of the roads. 
- Line painting has started. 
 

GENERAL MAINTENANCE 
- Lawn care is well on its way and sweeping of streets and sidewalks. 
- Cleaning of winter equipment and repair is in progress. 
- STP Building is finished. 

 
OTHER 

- Splash Pad is operational.  
 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY 

- OH & S Meetings are taking place once a month; minutes will be posted on SharePoint.  
- There are no accidents to report at this time.  

 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS’ PROJECTS 

- The engineering on the storm drain on Marshall Street has been started.  
- The engineering report from CBCL for the reservoir leak has been completed and 

recommendations are in the planning stages. 
- I am working on the engineering for the replacement of the sewer lines on Main Street.  

 
 
 
John Pearson 
Director of Public Works 
 

Office of the 

Director of Public Works 

John Pearson 

Phone: (902) 824-0771 

Fax: (902) 825-6460 

pwdirector@town.middleton.ns.ca 



TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 
JENNIFER COOLEN, DIRECTOR 
JUNE 2016 

PROGRAMS 
Our regular summer day camp programs will be happening again this summer, as will our tennis 

lessons, senior fitness, swimming lessons, adult boot camp (with a new leader), gentle and 

lunch time yoga, and we are excited to be able to offer some NEW programs as well. This 

summer we will be offering a program for children and youth ages 5-12 called “Exploration 

Fitness”. It will be an 8 week program that will give the children and youth a taste of some new 

experiences that might peak their active interests! We are also reformatting our youth program 

to coincide with our day camp program this summer. Youth ages 11-15 can sign up for our 9am-

4pm youth program that will run Monday-Friday, alongside the day camp program but with 

activities geared to their age and interests. Finally, we are adding a youth adventure program 

which will take place on Tuesday evenings beginning on July 5th. Activities will include hiking, 

canoeing, kayaking, biking, etc.  

ACTIVE LIVING COORDINATOR 
Our new Active Living Coordinator has now started work and is diving head first into creating 

new and exciting opportunities for people in our community to get active. Stephanie Wadden 

was the Recreation Director in the Village of Canning and has a degree in Recreation 

Management from Acadia University. You will be seeing a lot of Stephanie out in the 

community as she works to build relationships and partnerships that foster an active and 

healthy community. If you would like to reach her, you can email her at 

mpal@town.middleton.ns.ca or call her at 902.825.6611. 

EVENTS 
Things are booming in the events department as we work hard to deliver events that target the 

needs and wants of a large variety of people. We love the feeling of the community coming 

together and try to pack as many opportunities for this to happen into the summer as we can. 

Here are some dates that you can mark on your calendar:  

July 

1 – Canada Day Celebrations at the Macdonald Museum, 1:30 – 3 pm. 

8 – Pool Party, Middleton & District Pool, 7 – 8 pm 

      Movie in the Park: Surf’s Up, Dusk (Pre-movie Entertainment to start at 8:15 pm) 

15 & 16 - Heart of the Valley Festival 

22 – Movie in the Park: Mrs. Doubtfire, Dusk 

24 – Senior’s Celebrations, Centennial Park, 12 – 1:30pm 

29 – Concert in the Park: Matt the Music Man, Centennial Park, 6:30-7:30pm 

mailto:mpal@town.middleton.ns.ca


 

August 

5 – Movie in the Park: Hoodwinked, Dusk 

12 – Movie in the Park: Inside Out, Dusk 

13 – Middleton Heart Run, Rotary Park, 7am – 12pm 

14 – Heart of the Valley Century Ride, Rotary Park, 7am – 5pm 

19 – Pool Party, 7 – 8 pm, Middleton & District Pool 

        Movie in the Park: Zootopia, Dusk 

21 – Picnic in the Park, Centennial Park 11:30am – 1:30pm 

SKATEPARK 
Things are rolling right along with the skatepark development. The tender has been awarded to 

Newline Skateparks and meetings have begun to figure out a timeline and next step. There will 

be community consultations as part of the development process and we hope the community 

actively engages to suggest their input as to the design of the park. More information on that 

will be posted as it is made available. 

YOUTH AMBASSADORS 
We are pleased to say that we have four candidates competing for this year’s title of Youth 

Ambassador. You will have a chance to meet the candidates at many of the events throughout 

the summer, but will be formally introduced to them on July 15th at Centennial Park between 

the family fun run and the movie. The ambassador candidates will be giving a speech to the 

audience to introduce themselves and explain why they want to be the Youth Ambassador for 

the Town of Middleton. 

PARKS 
The parks crew has been hard at work and is now a full crew as we welcome Kyle Bell on board 

for the season. Our facilities manager just took a high-level course on playground inspection as 

the safety of the public is one of our priorities. Hopefully you will notice that the hanging 

flowers and flower beds around town are now in place and brightening up the town. The 

floating dock has been a work in progress at Riverside Park and is now more user friendly. The 

crew has also been working to get all of the washrooms, both in Rotary and Centennial Park in 

order and those washrooms are now open throughout the day. Finally, they have been busy 

mowing the grass and helping the rest of the summer staff prepare for upcoming events. 

 

 

 

Jennifer Coolen, Director of Recreation & Community Services 

 



TOWN OF MIDDLETON 
DEPARTMENT OF RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 
JENNIFER COOLEN, DIRECTOR 
JULY 2016 

Skatepark 
The plans for our all wheel park are coming along very nicely. We had a special opportunity to host a 

funding announcement that brought together local politicians of all levels. At that announcement, the 

federal government officially announced that the Town of Middleton has been awarded a grant in the 

amount of $84,701 through ACOA’s Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program. The provincial 

government was there to confirm their contribution of $20,000 and the County of Annapolis was there 

to confirm their contribution of $30,000. With the contributions from the Town of Middleton and the 

fundraising efforts of the Rotary Club and Kinsmen and the Skatepark Society, we will begin construction 

in August on a park worth more than $200,000. Special thanks to Andy Kerr, our program and 

communication coordinator for putting that announcement together.  

The first community plan consultation was held at the end of June and the next one will be held at the 

beginning of August. In the first consultation meeting, an initial design was presented and there was in-

depth discussion about changes that the community would like to see to the design. At the next 

consultation meeting, the updated design will be presented and if received well, will act as the final 

design to be implemented. 

Programs 
Our summer programs are up and running and although some got off to a slow start, the community is 

coming out in full force now. Aside from our structured programs, we are also able to offer more 

opportunities for canoe/kayak loans and community adventures that are being very well received. We 

will be keeping track of some statistics on use and reporting on that at the end of the summer. We are 

also looking at more permanent solutions to a dock at Riverside Park to make river access more 

accessible with the changing water levels. As we move into the middle of the summer, we will soon 

need to start looking at fall program ideas. If you have any, be sure to pass them on. 

Events 
The Sizzlin’ Summer Splash-off Poll Party was a success despite the overcast weather. We hosted two of 

the Halifax Mermaids for this event, and they were very popular with all of the children who attended. 

There were roughly 50 people at this event. Our staff played music, had a cannonball contest, and gave 

away prizes. 

The first Movie in the Park was “Surf’s Up”. The crowd was decent, considering the mild temperature 

and chance of rain, but luckily the rain held off for our event. The crowd that attended was enthusiastic, 

and we had a good group of young children that joined us for some dance moves before the movie 

started. For our next movie, we are coordinating with Foodland to sell popcorn, the proceeds of which 

will be given back to the community. Thanks so much to Foodland for their generosity 



Our office has been very busy gearing up for the Heart of the Valley Festival coming up this weekend. A 

lot of work has been done on promotions for this event and we have been working very closely with the 

committee to offer the community the best possible festival within our means.  

Facilities 
Aside from the regular duties of maintaining our grounds and play spaces, the parks crew had to deal 

with a couple of unfortunate vandalism incidents in the past month. The first one involved damage to 

the electrical panel at Rotary Park and the entire panel had to be replaced. The second one involved an 

overnight break-in at the pool and in addition to some building damage, a small amount of money and 

property was also stolen. 

Training 
Four more members of our staff are now trained in canoe/kayak level 1. We also hosted a first aid 

course for our staff members and sent a couple of our staff members to a bike workshop as well to learn 

basic bike maintenance and group bike leadership skills. These training sessions will help us as a 

department to safely and effectively engage our community in more physical activity opportunities.  

 

 

 

 

Jennifer Coolen, Director of Recreation & Community Services 



 

 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 

 

MAY 

2016 

PLANNING SERVICES 
      

 



Town of Middleton   

Planning Services Report – May 2016 

 

Prepared by: Sharon McAuley   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1. Planning and Development Activity Report   

2. Building Permit Activity Report  

3. Inspection Services Activity Report 

4. Planning/GIS Technician Activity Report 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 1 
THE  4SITE GROUP                                                                                                             2906 Parkdale Ave./Halifax/NS/B3L 3Z3 

                                                                                                                                   voice  902.229.3634/email  info@4sitegroup.ca 

 

Planning 
Development 
Project Management 

 
To:    Sharon McAuley, Coordinator, Planning and Development Services  
From:              Chris Millier 
Date:    June 1, 2016 
Re:  Town of Middleton, Status Report 
 

May  1 - 31, 2016 
 
Planning Application Activity 
 

 PAC Meeting, May 9, 2016 
 PAC Meeting, May 24, 2016 

 

Development Permit Activity 
 

 Development Permit M16-010, May 17, 2016 
Capitol Pub, 333 Main Street 
Deck (seasonal), Existing Commercial Structure 

 
                      
  Permit Activity Summary, May 2016   

       Current Current Previous Yr. Previous Yr.   
       Month YTD Month YTD   
  Development Permits       
   Residential       
    New Construction 0 0 0 0   
    Renovation/Addition 0 0 0 0   
    Accessory Structures 0 0 0 0   
             
   Commercial/Industrial       
    New Construction 0 0 0 0   
    Renovation/Addition 0 3 1 1   
    Accessory Structures 1 1 0 0   
         
  Institutional      
   New Construction 0 0 0 0  
   Renovation / Addition 0 2 0 0  
   Accessory Structures 0 0 0 0  
           
   Other (signs, occupancy, etc.) 0 1 0 0   
             
           
  Final Subdivision Approval       

    Residential Lots Created 0 0 0 0   
    Comm./Industrial Lots Created 0 0 0 0   
                      

 

mailto:info@4sitegroup.ca


Month: May 2
5

7
4

Total Estimated Value May 2016: $79,000.00 2 $148,600.00 $150.00
Total Estimated Value May 2015: $8,300.00 3 $554,300.00 $494.60
Total Estimated Value May 2014: $225,000.00 3 $261,600.00

File # Name Permit Fee
Estimated 

Value

M16-008 Emmanuel Cong. Church $100.00 $25,000.00

M16-009 TDL Group --------- $54,000.00

$50.00

$150.00 $79,000.00

Total Active Permits: 14

Construction
Date                                       

Building Permit Issued

Middleton

Applicant Address

Total permits for May 2014:

Total May:

May 3, 2016

1 permit

May 3, 2016

Town of Middleton

Number of 

Building Permits 

Total Estimated Value YTD 2016-2017:
Permit Fees YTD 16-17:
Permit Fees May  2016:

$261,600.00
Year To Date 2015-2016:
Year To Date 2014-2015:

$554,300.00

37 Gates Ave. window replacement

Dev. Permits Only

Month:

Year To Date 2016-2017:

 BUILDING PERMIT REPORT

Figures based on Fiscal Year May to March

$79,000.00

Municipal Unit:

May 2016

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

$148,600.00

Building Value

Total permits for May 2016:

Location

Total Estimated Value YTD 2014-2015:

Middleton 241 Main St. exterior renovation

Total Estimated Value YTD 2015-2016:Total permits for May 2015:



 

 

 

 

 

Activity Report – MAY 2016 
 

 

 

3 BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED FOR MAY 

 

3 INSPECTIONS CARRIED OUT FOR MAY 

 

Staff continue to drive through the Town and receiving inquiry 

calls from the residents. 

 



 

Town of Middleton LIU/GIS 
GIS & Planning Technical Support Services 
Period : May 1 to May 31 
 

  
 

 

Submitted by: Trevor Robar 
 
Date: June 1, 2016 
 
Task Category Date Hrs

Update NSCAF and Property data for AVLIU PLAN Tuesday, May 3, 2016 0.50

Site Visit and Paperwork for 17/19 Taylor Dr PLAN Thursday, May 12, 2016 1.50

Add Quality Control Fields to AVLIU PW GIS layers PW Sunday, May 15, 2016 1

Add Quality Control Fields to AVLIU PW GIS layers PW Monday, May 16, 2016 1

Add Quality Control Fields to AVLIU PW GIS layers PW Tuesday, May 17, 2016 1

Civic Address Check 236-238 Main St PLAN Tuesday, May 17, 2016 0.5

Update Quality Control Fields, Property ID numbers for PW Assets PW Tuesday, May 17, 2016 1

Update Quality Control Fields, Property ID numbers for PW Assets PW Sunday, May 22, 2016 1

Planning Meeting in Middleton for AVLIU app change requests PLAN Thursday, May 26, 2016 1

Hrs

8.50  
 
Category Description:  PW = Public Works PLAN = Planning  REC = Recreation 

OTHER = Meetings, Printing etc… 

 



 

 

TOWN OF MIDDLETON 

 

JUNE 

2016 

PLANNING SERVICES 
      

 



Town of Middleton   

Planning Services Report – June 2016 

 

Prepared by: Sharon McAuley   
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

1. Planning and Development Activity Report   

2. Building Permit Activity Report  

3. Inspection Services Activity Report  

4. Planning/GIS Technician Activity Report 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 
THE  4SITE GROUP                                                                                                             2906 Parkdale Ave./Halifax/NS/B3L 3Z3 

                                                                                                                                   voice  902.229.3634/email  info@4sitegroup.ca 

 

Planning 
Development 
Project Management 

 
To:    Sharon McAuley, Coordinator, Planning and Development Services  
From:              Chris Millier 
Date:    July 1, 2016 
Re:  Town of Middleton, Status Report 
 

 
June 1 - 30, 2016 
 
Planning Application Activity 
 

 PAC Meeting, June 13, 2016 
 

Development Permit Activity 
 

 Development Permit M16-012, June 22, 2016 
K. Goodlad, 16 Bentley Dr 
Repair, Existing Deck, Existing Residential Structure 
 

 Development Permit M16-011, June 23, 2016 
E. Mason-Squires, 21 George Street 
Accessory Structure and Childcare Use in Existing Residential Structure 
 

 Development Permit M16-013, June 23, 2016 
Town of Middleton, 339 Marshall Street 
Accessory Structure – Storage Structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@4sitegroup.ca


Page 2 of 2 
THE  4SITE GROUP                                                                                                             2906 Parkdale Ave./Halifax/NS/B3L 3Z3 

                                                                                                                                   voice  902.229.3634/email  info@4sitegroup.ca 

 
 
 

 
                      
  Permit Activity Summary, June 2016   

       Current Current Previous Yr. Previous Yr.   
       Month YTD Month YTD   
  Development Permits       
   Residential       
    New Construction 0 0 0 0   
    Renovation/Addition 1 1 1 1   
    Accessory Structures 1 1 1 1   
             
   Commercial/Industrial       
    New Construction 0 0 0 0   
    Renovation/Addition 0 3 1 2   
    Accessory Structures 0 1 0 0   
         
  Institutional      
   New Construction 0 0 0 0  
   Renovation / Addition 0 2 0 0  
   Accessory Structures 1 1 0 0  
           
   Other (signs, occupancy, etc.) 1 2 1 1   
             
           
  Final Subdivision Approval       

    Residential Lots Created 0 0 0 0   
    Comm./Industrial Lots Created 0 0 0 0   
                      

 

mailto:info@4sitegroup.ca


Month: June 0
5

10
5

Total Estimated Value June 2016: $0.00 0 $148,600.00 $50.00
Total Estimated Value June 2015: $29,625.00 3 $583,925.00 $544.60
Total Estimated Value June 2014: $20,000.00 1 $281,600.00

File # Name Permit Fee
Estimated 

Value

$50.00

$50.00 $0.00

Total Active Permits: 14

Date                                       

Building Permit Issued
Applicant Address

Total permits for June 2014:

Total June:

1 permit

Town of Middleton

Number of 

Building Permits 

Total Estimated Value YTD 2016-2017:
Permit Fees YTD 16-17:
Permit Fees June  2016:

$281,600.00

Construction

Year To Date 2015-2016:
Year To Date 2014-2015:

$583,925.00

Dev. Permits Only

Month:

Year To Date 2016-2017:

 BUILDING PERMIT REPORT

Figures based on Fiscal Year June to March

$0.00

Municipal Unit:

June 2016

TOWN OF MIDDLETON

$148,600.00

Building Value

Total permits for June 2016:

Location

Total Estimated Value YTD 2014-2015:
Total Estimated Value YTD 2015-2016:Total permits for June 2015:



 

 

 

 

 

Activity Report – JUNE 2016 
 

 

 

0 BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED FOR MAY 

 

2 INSPECTIONS CARRIED OUT FOR MAY 

 

Staff continue to drive through the Town and receive inquiries 

calls from the residents. 

 



 

Town of Middleton LIU/GIS 
GIS & Planning Technical Support Services 
Period : June 1 to June 30 
 

  
 

 

Submitted by: Trevor Robar 
 
Date: July 10, 2016 
 
June

Task Category Date Hrs

Photo color processing of 2015 Aerial Imagery, attempt to remove shadowing and color enhancement PLAN Sunday, June 26, 2016 1.00

Process new Aerial Photography tile cache to down to new level of 1:564 PLAN Tuesday, June 28, 2016 1.25

New color design for AVLIU Public Viewer PLAN Thursday, June 30, 2016 1

Hrs

3.25  
 
Category Description:  PW = Public Works PLAN = Planning  REC = Recreation 

OTHER = Meetings, Printing etc… 

 



 

Middleton RCMP 
Quarterly Update:       

Period Ending: 2016-06-30 
 
 
 
Number of Calls for Service within your respective District / Detachment  
 
1364- Annapolis District 
 
Files of Significance with PROS #. (Middleton Area)   
 
  -96 Year Old Female-Alzheimer Patient- Marshall Street, Middleton. Calls to report her 
vehicle has been stolen upwards of 15-20 times a day. Members make multiple patrols to 
conduct a wellbeing check every day. Vehicle was sold by her son months ago and she 
cannot remember. Working diligently with Senior Safety and Adult Protection.  
  -Assault on Police Officer/Mental Health Act-Wilmot- Subject suffers from Mental Health 
Issues and we’ve received many calls in the Middleton area regarding the male over the 
past few months, as he was no longer taking his medication. Subject assaulted Cst. HOWE 
and has been held for evaluation and medical treatment.  (2016-626243-May 23rd/2016)  
  - Armed Standoff, Phinneys Cove- Male suffering from Mental Health Issues threatening 
suicide with a large knife. After male was located members conducted a safe take down and 
male was taken to hospital and being held for assessment. (2016-743243) 
 - Pointing a Firearm- Carleton Corner/Soldiers Memorial, Middleton- Report of a suicidal 
Male leaving Soldiers Memorial before seeing a physician. When Members spoke with his 
girlfriend, it was disclosed that he had threated her and pointed a firearm at her, stating he 
was going to kill her and himself. Members conducted a search and located over 35 firearms 
in the residence. All have been seized. (2016-813421) 
 



 

Middleton RCMP 
Quarterly Update:       

Period Ending: 2016-06-30 
Files regarding Drug Seizures- (Middleton Area) 
2 files for Drug Seizures from Rotary Park, Middleton- Cpl. MacDonald (2016-681140) 
Vehicle Stop, Main Street Middleton- Drug Seizure- Cpl. MacDonald (2016-599942) 

 
Crime Reduction Strategy ....Number of Impaired Drivers, Checkpoints, etc. as this deals with 
the Crime Reduction Strategy, BSC and your APP. – ANNAPOLIS DISTRICT- 
75 Checkpoints conducted 
7 Impaired driving Charges/ Refusal to Provide Charge, 0 Impaired by Drug charge, and 3 
roadside suspensions. 
130 Tickets issued, 118 Warnings issued. 
Traffic initiative to conduct checkpoints for off road vehicles. Required training has been 
conducted for safe checkpoints and for the operation of the ATV’s. Tentative dates have 
been set and awaiting approval for the summer months.  
 
 
Meetings with Public Officials ... Mayors, Wardens, Police Advisory Boards  
 
PAB meetings are ongoing and consistent, attended by S/Sgt. MacGillivray and/or Cpl. 
MACDONALD.  
Wilmot Neighbourhood Watch Meetings attended by Cpl. MacDonald April, May and June. 
 
 
 



 

Middleton RCMP 
Quarterly Update:       

Period Ending: 2016-06-30 
 
 
Police Community Relations ... Attended functions in your area (ie. Red Serge), events / 
festivals which could impact operations / resources 
 
Checkpoints focused on Slow to 60km.  
Cops for Kids Programs- 2 day Camp in Tatamagouche. 
Graduation and Prom Festivities for the students. Including Safe Grad, Prom Parade etc.    
 
 
Financial Issues ... significant unexpected costs, budgetary shortfalls 
 
  New office space for Middleton Detachment – Proposal currently with DOJ. 
Incentive is supported by the Middleton Town Council, the Middleton Detachment 
Commander, The Annapolis District Commander and the District Policing officer in 
conjunction with the Police Advisory Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Middleton RCMP 
Quarterly Update:       

Period Ending: 2016-06-30 
 
 
Human Resource Issues ... Vacancies, Parental Leave, Long Term ODS, Suspensions 
S/Sgt. Dan MacGillivray NCOi/c Annapolis District 
Middleton Detachment is currently staffed with the following Members: 
Cpl. Tim MacDonald 
Cst. Brad Williams 
Cst. Billie Gardiner 
Cst. Angela Banfield 
Cst. Irene Clouter (Temp Court Liaison) 
Court Liaison Position –  Cst Irene Clouter 
Detachment Assistant – Nicole Illsley 
 
Awaiting 2 new members, and 1 corporal (Cpl. CORNECT transferred to 

Yarmouth)  
 
Report prepared by CPL Tim MACDONALD. Please do not hesitate to call 902-824-3312 if 
there are any questions or concerns. 
 
 
 



MAYOR’S REPORT JUNE  2016 

 

 
May 16th Chaired monthly Council session 

 

May 18th Attended “Police Day” event at Rotary Park 

 

May 19th Attended APSC meeting in Annapolis Royal 

 

June 1st Chaired Special Council session re: Skateboard Park Project 

 

June 1st Chaired 2016-2017 budget meeting 

 

June 6th Chaired Special Council Session 

 

June 6th Chaired monthly Committee of the Whole session 

 

June 8th Interview with Annapolis Valley Register 

 

June 12th Laid wreath at annual Decoration of the Graves ceremony 

 

June 15th Attended Valley Waste monthly meeting 

 

June 18th Attended Middleton Car Show (Mayor’s Award) 

 

June 18th Attended annual Relay For Life opening ceremonies 

 

 

 

 

 
 



MAYOR’S REPORT JULY  2016 

 

 
 

June 27th Attended funding announcement re: Riding Park 

 

June 28th Attended awards presentations at Middleton Nursing Home 

 

June 28th Attended graduating ceremonies at Middleton Regional High School 

 

July 1st  Attended Canada Day celebrations, Macdonald Museum 

 

July 4th  Chaired Special Council session 

 

July 4th  Chaired monthly Committee of the Whole session  

 

July 13th Chaired Special Council session 

 

July 15th Attended Middleton Youth Ambassador’s candidates speeches 

 

July 16th Took part in Heart of the Valley Festival street parade 

 

July 18th Attended funeral of former Mayor Ken Clark 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 
 



Agenda Item # ___16.07.07__ 

 
 
 

CORRESPONDENCE – MAY & JUNE 
(for July 18, 2016 Council Meeting) 

 
 
  
The following items of correspondence are tabled for the Council’s attention.  A copy of any 
correspondence item listed, if not previously circulated, is available on SharePoint for interested 
members of Council: 
 
 
1. A letter and information from the Canadian Wireless Telecommunications Association, on 

the Recycle My Cell program in Nova Scotia. 
 

2. A copy of the June edition of the Careforce newsletter. 
 

3. A letter and information from the Canadian Union of Postal Workers regarding the federal 
government review of Canada Post and asking the Town to provide input to the Canada Post 
Review. 

 
4. A letter from William A. Smith, Ombudsman for Nova Scotia, introducing himself and 

advising that he will be travelling the Province and will attempt to set up a meeting with the 
Mayor. 

 
5. An invitation from Clean Annapolis River Project to take a free guided-boat-tour of the 

Annapolis River during the Annapolis River Festival. 
 

6. A copy of the Audited Consolidated Statements for Valley Region Solid Waste-Resource 

Management Authority for the year ended March 31, 2016. 
 

7. A copy of June edition of Sport Quarterly from Sport Nova Scotia. 
 

8. A copy of the Annapolis Valley Regional Library Annual Report for the year ended March 31, 
2016. 
 
 
 

 
  
 
  


	Council Agenda - 16.07.18
	16.07.03.01 - Audited Financial Statements
	16.07.03.01 - FS 2016
	16.07.03.01 - FS TB 2016

	16.07.05.01 - Electronic Voting Bylaw
	012-2016 Electronic Voting Bylaw

	16.07.05.02 - Repeal of Swimming Pool Bylaw
	011-2016 Swimming Pool Fencing Bylaw
	45 - Swimming Pool

	16.07.05.03.b - Appointment - Middleton Fire Department
	16.07.05.03.d - VWRM - TBR 16-17-1
	16.07.05.03.e -  RFD 018-2016 - Notice to Amend Policy G.2.1 Fees - Building and Planning
	018-2016  Building and Planning Fees
	G.2.1. Fees - Building and Planning (revised 16.07.18)

	16.07.05.04 - Capital Investment Plan Document
	16.07.05.05 - TBR - Town General Operations
	16.07.05.06 - RFD 017-2016 - Harassment Policy Amendment
	017-2016 Harassment Policy
	D 3 4  Harassment June 2016

	16.07.06.01 - Management Reports - June  & July 2016
	Mgmt Rpt - Public Works - 16.06
	Mgmt Rpt - Public Works - 16.07
	Mgmt Rpt - Rec and Comm Services - 16.06
	Mgmt Rpt - Rec and Comm Services - 16.07

	16.07.06.02 - Planning Services - May & June 2016
	Planning Services Report - May 2016
	Cover
	PDAR - May 2016
	BAR - May 2016
	ISR - May 2016
	PGISTAR - May 2016

	Planning Services Report - June 2016
	Cover
	PDAR - June 2016
	BAR - June 2016
	ISR - June  2016
	PGISTAR - June 2016


	16.07.06.03 - RCMP Report - April 1 to June 30, 2016
	16.07.06.06 - Mayor - June & July 2016
	Mayor's Report - June 2016
	Mayor's Report - July 2016

	16.07.07 - Correspondence - May & June 2016
	16.07.05.03.c - Req for MPS-LUB  Amend - 159 Commercial Council.pdf
	16.06.04.01 - Request

	16.07.06.06 - Mayor - June & July 2016.pdf
	Mayor's Report - June 2016
	Mayor's Report - July 2016


